
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

   

Regular Meeting Agenda 
TNHAA Board of Directors 

Wednesday – November 19, 2025 @ 4:00 PM 
Virtual/In-Person 

 

1. Call to Order       Mr. Robert Reed 
2. Minutes Approval – October 15, 2025   Attached 
3. Chairman’s Report      Mr. Robert Reed 
4. Executive Director’s Report     Mr. Tom Rafter 
5. Finance Committee Report     Ms. Serena Neal-Sanjuro 

a. September 2025 Financials     Attached  
6. Airport Manager’s Report – Airfield Operations  Mr. Jeremy Nielson 
7. Lessee’s Report – The New HVN LLC    Mr. Jeremy Nielson 

a. Community Engagement Report   Mr. Tom Cavaliere 
8. Reports and Action Items 
9. Other Business 
10. Public Comment 
11. Adjournment    



 
 

TWEED NEW HAVEN AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES OF OCTOBER 15, 2025 

BOARD MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE 

Robert Reed, John Picard, Linda Hennessey, Serena Neal-Sanjurjo, Carlos Eyzaguirre, Mark Sklarz, Ray Pompano, 
David White, Jesse Phillips, Michael Fimiani, Mark Scussel, Kevin Rocco, and Dean Johnson. 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Ken Dagliere 

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 

Tom Rafter, Tom Cavaliere, Malena Zanjani, Jeremy Nielson, Felipe Suriel, Andrew King, Brian C. Courtney, Eliot 
Jameson, Jean Perry Phillips, Jeremiah Wilhite, Kayla Reasco, Lorena Venegas, Michael Giordano, Sal DeCola, Steve 
Wight, Timothy Sullivan, Toni Lorenti, Matt Shelby, Lisa Brandes, Anthony Camposano, Mark Zaretsky, Garrett 
Kimball, Matt Hoey, Byung, Bryan, Petrina Yoxall, Vincent Perrelli, Pastor Jack Davidson, and Jacey Wyatt. 

• CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Reed officially called the October 15, 2025, TNHAA Regular Board of Directors meeting to order at 
approximately 4:02 PM. 

• APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mr. Reed moved to approve the minutes from the regular Board Meeting held on September 17, 2025. The motion 
was supported by Mr. Fimiani and seconded by Mr. Rocco. With no further questions or comments, the Board 
unanimously approved the minutes. 

• CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

Chairman Reed reported no new items for discussion. He noted that East Haven Representative Judy Mison 
resigned on September 16, 2025, and the Authority is currently awaiting a replacement appointment from the 
Town of East Haven. The board will be updated once a new representative is named. 

• EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Executive Director Rafter provided updates on the following matters: 

• Action Items from Previous Meeting: A suggested amendment to a prior resolution by Mr. Scussel will be 
addressed at the November Board Meeting. 



THNAA BOARD MINUTES 

P a g e  2 | 11 

 

• Resolutions: Resolution #628 - Approval of the Executive Director Transition Agreement, allowing for Mr. 
Rafter’s continued limited service to assist with leadership transition. 

• Air Service Update: Mr. Matt Shelby of Avports to present air service trends and developments later in the 
meeting. 

• Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Meeting: FAA meeting held on September 22, 2025, to discuss project 
timelines, priorities, and funding availability. Follow-up information has been requested by FAA for further 
evaluation. 

• Environmental Stewardship Committee (ESC) Meeting: Held October 14, 2025. Topics discussed included: 
o Noise Monitor Update 
o Cancellation of Zero Emission Vehicle (ZEV) Grant 
o Residential Sound Insulation Program (RSIP) Update 
o HEPA Air Purifier Program Progress 

• Federal Government Shutdown: No current operational impacts, but prolonged shutdown may delay 
administrative processes. Mr. Scussel inquired whether any delays were anticipated due to the shutdown, to 
which Mr. Rafter responded that while day-to-day operations remain unaffected, some administrative 
processes—such as the Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) application currently under review—may face delays. 
Appreciation was expressed for the continued service of federal workers, particularly TSA personnel. 

• Airport Statistics: HVN continues to experience strong passenger growth. 
o July 2025 enplanements up 20% YoY (11,306 passengers) 
o Year-to-date enplanements up 35% (182,822 passengers) 
o 12-month period ending June 2025: 703,992 enplaned passengers 

• Capacity Overview: In response to a question from Mr. Johnson regarding HVN’s operational capacity, Mr. 
Rafter explained that capacity is multi-faceted, involving landside, terminal, ramp, and airside operations. The 
runway has ample availability to accommodate additional takeoffs and landings. The ramp is approaching its 
operational limit, with peak-time congestion becoming more evident. Terminal space was described as very 
congested and currently operating at approximately 75% capacity, making it the first area likely to constrain 
future growth. Mr. Rafter noted ongoing landside improvements are helping to manage flow, but additional 
enhancements may be necessary as traffic continues to increase. 

No further questions were raised by the Board at the conclusion of the report.  

• FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

AUGUST 2025 FINANCIALS 

Prior to the meeting, Ms. Neal-Sanjurjo reviewed the financials and requested that Mr. Rafter present the Finance 
Committee Report for the period ending August 31, 2025. Mr. Rafter provided an overview of the report. 

• Airfield Operations: 
o Revenues: For August, actual revenues (excluding the Lessee subsidy of $169,343) totaled $107,034. 

The required subsidy for the month was under budget by $150,766. Year-to-date (YTD) revenues 
excluding the $320,288 subsidy were $210,492, exceeding budget expectations by $17,445. 

o Expenses: August expenses were $276,378, coming in under budget by $140,255. YTD expenses 
totaled $530,780, which is $302,485 below budget. 

• Administrative Operations: 



THNAA BOARD MINUTES 

P a g e  3 | 11 

 

o Revenues: August revenues totaled $80,490, which was $14,636 over budget. YTD actual revenues 
were $141,458, exceeding budget by $17,021. 

o Expenses: August administrative expenses totaled $72,978. YTD expenses remained under budget by 
$14,689. 

o Net Result: The net result for the Admin Fund in August was a positive $7,512. YTD, the fund shows a 
negative $3,565, though this is still $31,739 better than budgeted. 

• Balance Sheet Highlights: 
o The Fund Balance at the end of the reporting period stood at $358,392. 
o Total liabilities and fund balances equaled $1,863,440. 

• AIRPORT MANAGER’S REPORT 

AIRFIELD OPERATIONS 

In Mr. Nielsen’s absence, Mr. Cavaliere provided the Airfield Operations update: 

• A pre-bid meeting was held for the pavement repair RFB. Bid responses are expected by October 22, 2025. 
Runway pavement conditions continue to be monitored. 

• A tenant snow operations meeting is tentatively scheduled for November 20, 2025. Invitations will be 
distributed by the end of the week. 

• Airport staff met with HVN’s interim Air Traffic Control Manager to prepare for winter operations and 
coordinate upcoming construction projects, including the Taxiway B/C fillet expansion. 

• Avports has hired a new Environmental, Health, and Safety Manager. The manager’s initial focus will be to 
support the development of HVN’s Safety Management System (SMS) in collaboration with the airport’s 
consulting team. 

• Wildlife activity continues to be monitored, and operations staff are coordinating with USDA to mitigate 
potential hazards and minimize impacts to aircraft operations. 

• A pre-construction meeting was held with Oshkosh Corporation to finalize specifications for the new Aircraft 
Rescue and Firefighting (ARFF) vehicle, expected to be delivered in 2027. 

Mr. Scussel inquired whether the newly appointed Health and Safety Manager has a clearly defined role. Mr. 
Cavaliere will provide further detail at the next meeting. 

 Action Item: Mr. Cavaliere to provide further details at the next meeting regarding the newly appointed 
Health and Safety Manager role. 

• LESSEE’S REPORT – THE NEW HVN LLC 

THE NEW HVN LLC 

Mr. Cavaliere provided the Lessee’s Report with the following updates: 

• Avports is working closely with TSA to implement a third credential checkpoint at the airport. This will 
enhance processing capacity while keeping the existing baggage drop procedures in place. 

• The rollout of new CAT-2 screening equipment is expected within the next month. This advanced system 
is aimed at improving efficiency ahead of the holiday travel season. 



THNAA BOARD MINUTES 

P a g e  4 | 11 

 

• Additional staffing will be scheduled as needed to effectively manage increased passenger volumes and 
baggage flow. 

• Regular coordination meetings with the New Haven Police Department (NHPD) are ongoing, with a 
specific focus on ensuring smooth operations and safety during the upcoming holiday travel period. 

AIRSIDE DEVELOPMENT REPORT 

Matt Shelby from Avports gave an update on air service development and shared a presentation, which will be 
included at the end of the minutes. The board discussion focused on key questions and insights raised by 
members. 

• Data Sources: In response to a question from Mr. Scussel, Mr. Shelby confirmed that air service demand 
data is drawn from multiple sources, including DOT T100 reports, third-party analytics, and anonymized 
mobile device travel data. 

• Runway Limitations: Mr. White inquired about HVN’s 5,600-foot runway. Mr. Shelby explained that while 
it is suitable for some aircraft, Avelo currently takes weight penalties on warmer days. The Airbus A220, 
operated by Breeze, can fly fully loaded without such restrictions. 

• Aircraft Comparison: The board discussed how Avelo’s newly announced Embraer aircraft compares to 
Breeze’s A220. Mr. Shelby noted both are next-generation jets with high performance, though a detailed 
comparison will be provided at a future meeting. 

• Carrier Expansion: Mr. White expressed interest in attracting a legacy carrier (e.g., Delta, United, 
American). Mr. Shelby confirmed multiple meetings have taken place and expressed optimism for a 
potential network carrier entry by 2026. 

• Breeze Airways: Discussion also touched on Breeze’s customer experience and pricing model. Mr. Shelby 
noted that although initial load factors were low, they have improved, and Avports remains in active 
dialogue to encourage Breeze’s growth at HVN. 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT REPORT 

Mr. Cavaliere reported several updates in recognition, environmental programs, and community outreach:  

Community Partnerships and Events: 

• BioCT Annual Mixer: TNHAA was proud to sponsor and attend the BioCT Annual Mixer, connecting with 
leaders from Connecticut’s life sciences and biotech sectors. Industry stakeholders highlighted HVN’s 
growing role in supporting innovation and economic development. 

• Innovation Cluster Announcement: TNHAA participated in the State of Connecticut’s official 
announcement naming New Haven as the state’s first “Innovation Cluster”, accompanied by a $50.5 
million investment in infrastructure for the biotech and quantum computing sectors. 

• Cultural Celebration: Staff attended the Greater New Haven Italian American Heritage Committee Dinner 
at Anthony’s Ocean View, honoring the rich cultural heritage of the region. 

Residential Indoor Air Program (RIAP) - As of October 1, 2025: 

• 844 applications were mailed to eligible residents. 
• 21 were returned as undeliverable. 
• 379 eligible applications were received. 
• 421 promo codes for free AlenAir Flex air purifiers were issued (including multi-unit households). 



THNAA BOARD MINUTES 

P a g e  5 | 11 

 

• 241 residents completed air purifier orders. 
• The program remains open for applications through the end of the year. 

During the discussion, Mr. Reed inquired about gathering testimonials from residents who received air purifiers 
through the RIAP, suggesting the feedback could be published to highlight community impact. Mr. Cavaliere 
agreed to collect and share this feedback with the board. Mr. White recommended issuing a press release and 
launching a broader media campaign to highlight Avelo’s purchase of the new E195 aircraft, emphasizing the 
significance of the quieter and more efficient fleet additions. Mr. Cavaliere acknowledged the value of the idea and 
committed to exploring next steps with Avports and media outlets. It was also noted by multiple board members 
that, given Tweed is Avelo’s largest operational base and the scope of the airline’s recent aircraft order, it is highly 
likely that the new E195s will be deployed from HVN, providing improved range and a better passenger 
experience. 

• REPORTS AND ACTION ITEMS 

RESOLUTION #628: APPROVAL OF A TRANSITION PLAN FOR THOMAS RAFTER 

Chairman Reed introduced Resolution #628, which outlines the terms of a transition plan for Executive Director 
Tom Rafter, allowing him to continue in a transitional role until a successor is appointed. 

The resolution was read aloud in full during the meeting. A motion to approve was made by Mr. Picard and 
seconded by Mr. Fimiani.  

During discussion, Mr. Scussel noted a typographical error in Section 3, Paragraph A ("thee" to be corrected to 
"three"). He also raised concerns regarding Section 6 (Goals and Objectives), questioning its relevance during a 
transition period and suggesting it be revised to reflect Mr. Rafter’s transitional role rather than ongoing annual 
performance evaluation.  

A motion to amend was made by Mr. Scussel and seconded by Mr. Pompano. The resolution, as amended, was 
unanimously approved by the Board. The final version of the amended resolution will be attached to the Board 
Action Summary. 

RESOLUTION #629: RESOLUTION PROHIBITING THE USE OF AIRPORT RESOURCES FOR PARTISAN OR 
POLITICAL PURPOSES 

Chairman Reed introduced Resolution #629, which reaffirms the Authority’s commitment to maintaining the 
airport as a nonpartisan public asset. The motion was introduced by Mr. Fimiani and seconded by Ms. Serena Neal-
Sanjurjo. 

During discussion, Mr. Rocco inquired whether the Connecticut Airport Authority and Bradley International were 
taking similar steps. While confirmation was not definitive, it was noted that the resolution aligns with actions 
taken at other airports nationally. Mr. Hoey raised concerns about potential federal funding risks. Legal counsel 
confirmed the TSA’s request was not a mandate, but acknowledged possible pushback due to the political 
sensitivity. Ms. Neal-Sanjurjo emphasized the importance of taking a principled stand, even amid potential risks, to 
maintain the integrity of the Authority’s mission. Mr. Fimiani added that political messaging could negatively 
impact passenger experience and should not proceed without board approval. 



THNAA BOARD MINUTES 

P a g e  6 | 11 

 

Mr. Scussel abstained from voting, citing lack of familiarity with the specific video in question. The resolution was 
adopted by a majority vote, with one abstention. 

• OTHER BUSINESS  

During Other Business, Chairman Reed proposed amending the meeting agenda to include Resolution #629, 
addressing the use of airport resources for political or partisan purposes. 

The motion to amend the agenda was made by Mr. Eyzaguirre and seconded by Mr. Fimiani. 

Mr. Scussel requested clarification about the resolution’s subject matter, which related to a video aired in the TSA 
area that raised concerns of political partisanship. 

Mr. Pompano voted in opposition to the amendment. 

The motion passed with the required supermajority (two-thirds of members present) and Resolution #629 was 
officially added to the agenda for board consideration (see above). 

• PUBLIC COMMENT 

Please note that the following comments reflect the speaker's personal opinions and concerns, not established facts. Public 
Comment is intended for remarks from the public, not for a question-and-answer session. For inquiries, members of the public 
are encouraged to reach out directly to the Tweed New Haven Airport Authority or Avports. 

REV JACK PERKINS DAVIDSON – HAMDEN, CT [VIRTUAL] 

Commenter expressed concern about how the Authority defines “partisan politics,” particularly in relation to 
actions like environmental reporting, diversity hiring, and associations with federal agencies. The commenter 
noted that U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) was involved in an incident earlier that day in Hamden 
and criticized Avelo Airlines for its involvement in deportation flights. The commenter claimed there is growing 
community opposition to such practices and suggested the Authority prepare for the possibility that Avelo may 
reconsider its operations at Tweed as a result. 

JACEY WYATT – BRANFORD, CT [IN-PERSON] 

Commenter expressed interest in joining the Board and provided informational materials outlining personal 
background and qualifications. The commenter requested that the materials be shared with any relevant 
nominating committee for consideration. 

TRINA YOXALL – NEW HAVEN, CT [IN-PERSON] 

Commenter expressed concern about ongoing traffic congestion on Fort Hale Road, specifically citing delays during 
the evening of October 9 and the morning of October 10. The commenter stated that no extra duty police officers 
were observed directing traffic during those times and also reported continued issues with unauthorized parking in 
resident-only zones. Dissatisfaction was expressed regarding the lack of visible traffic enforcement and the 
absence of a response after reporting the issue to airport leadership. 

LORENA VENEGAS – EAST HAVEN, CT [VIRTUAL] 

Commenter criticized the Authority for denying release of a list of air purifier recipients in response to a Freedom 
of Information (FOI) request. The commenter stated that, as a quasi-public entity using public funds, the Authority 



THNAA BOARD MINUTES 

P a g e  7 | 11 

 

is obligated to provide this information and alleged that a state representative from East Haven also did not 
receive the list after requesting it. Concerns were raised about transparency, accessibility of program information, 
and the quality of related public communications. Additionally, the commenter reiterated a request for the 
Authority to print and make publicly available the full Connecticut DEEP permit application. 

LISA BRANDES – NEW HAVEN, CT [VIRTUAL] 

Commenter encouraged the Authority and airport operator to provide more information to the public about the 
environmental, fuel, and noise efficiency of new aircraft being introduced at Tweed. Additionally, the commenter 
suggested considering the academic calendar of local colleges and universities when planning flight schedules, 
citing significant travel volumes around school breaks and events. The commenter proposed collaboration with the 
higher education community to better serve student travelers. 

TONI LORENTI – MERIDEN, CT [VIRTUAL] 

Commenter with professional experience flying provided technical input, stating that the E2 is comparable in noise 
characteristics to the Airbus A220 due to similar geared turbofan engines. The commenter noted that while the E2 
has slightly less range than the A220, both aircraft are well-suited to operations at Tweed. The commenter 
expressed support for both airlines flying from HVN and offered best wishes for their continued success. 

MICHAEL GIORDANO – JUNO BEACH, FL [VIRTUAL] 

Commenter responded to earlier discussion about aligning flight schedules with school breaks, clarifying that flight 
scheduling decisions are made by the airlines, not the airport. The commenter suggested that while the airport can 
share community feedback, it cannot mandate service on specific dates such as college move-in days. The 
commenter encouraged directing such requests to the airlines directly. 

• ADJOURNMENT 

With no further business to discuss, Mr. Reed called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Hennessey proposed 
the motion, and Mr. Fimiani seconded it. The meeting was adjourned at approximately 5:20 PM. The next meeting 
will be held on November 19, 2025, at 4:00 PM. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

 Action Item: Mr. Cavaliere to provide further details at the next meeting regarding the newly appointed 
Health and Safety Manager role. 

MINUTES PREPARED AND SUBMITTED BY 

Malena Zanjani 

10/16/25 

  



THNAA BOARD MINUTES 

P a g e  8 | 11 

 

AIR SERVICE UPDATE 

 

 



THNAA BOARD MINUTES 

P a g e  9 | 11 

 

 

 



THNAA BOARD MINUTES 

P a g e  10 | 11 

 

 

 



THNAA BOARD MINUTES 

P a g e  11 | 11 

 

 



RESOLUTION #629 
Resolu�on Prohibi�ng the Use of Airport Resources for Par�san or Poli�cal Purposes 

Whereas, the mission of the Tweed-New Haven Airport Authority is to maintain and improve 
Tweed-New Haven Airport as a vital public asset, operated safely, efficiently, and sustainably; 
and 

Whereas, the Authority is responsible for issuing and administering the Opera�ng Standards, 
as approved by the Board; and   

Whereas, there are Airport rules and regula�ons and other laws applicable to poli�cal ac�vity 
at the Airport; and  

Whereas, as a steward of a public asset, the Authority must uphold public trust by refraining 
from engaging in or suppor�ng par�san or poli�cal ac�vi�es;   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

Effec�ve immediately no airport supplies, equipment, or other resources—including those 
managed by the airport’s private operator—shall be used for any par�san or poli�cal purpose. 

Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 7

RESOLUTION #628

APPROVAL OF A TRANSITION PLAN FOR THOMAS RAFTER

-



Page 2 of 7

(updated 10/16/25)

 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE TWEED NEW HAVEN AIRPORT AUTHORITY AND 

THOMAS RAFTER FOR THE PERIOD 1/24/26-10/24/26 

 

 SECTION I: FUNCTIONS & DUTIES  

SECTION II: TERM

  
 

  

 SECTION III: TERMINATION & SEVERANCE PAY 

 

-

  

  



Page 3 of 7

  

 

 

  

SECTION IV: COMPENSATION  

 Base Salary:  
 -

  -

 

SECTION V: BENEFITS  

 



Page 4 of 7

 

SECTION VI: EXPENSES

A.

-

 

B.  

C.  

D.  

SECTION VII: HOURS OF WORK  

   

Title Weekly

          
 

         
 

   
 

SECTION VIII: BONDING & INDEMNIFICATION  



Page 5 of 7

 

 

SECTION IX: SEVERABILITY  

 

SECTION X: EXECUTION

SECTION XI: GOVERNING LAW

SECTION XII: COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF ETHICS

-of-

 

SECTION XII: NOTICES

 
 

 
 



Page 6 of 7

APPENDIX A - JOB DESCRIPTION
 

 

 

 

  
   

 
   of    
 

 
 

 
8   of
9     

  
  

          
 

 

 

 
 

 

of
 

   
 



Page 7 of 7

 
 

    

     

 





TWEED-NEW HAVEN AIRPORT AUTHORITY   
AIRFIELD ACCOUNT

Income Statement September 30, 2025

September Year to Date Budget
    Actual     Budget     Actual     Budget Board Approved       

(Annual)
Revenues
AIR CARRIER FUEL FLOWAGE FEES 28,292.95 32,851.25 99,395.34 98,553.75 394,215.00 
FBO FUEL FLOWAGE FEES 1,920.00 4,176.75 10,476.12 12,530.25 50,121.00 
GA LANDNG FEES 50,086.75 59,495.58 171,363.84 178,486.74 713,947.00 
FUEL REIMBURSEMENT & OTHER 10,552.79 - 20,109.35 - - 
LESSEE AIRFIELD REIMBURSEMENT 197,588.97 320,109.16 517,876.86 960,327.48 3,841,310.00 

Total Revenues 288,441.46 416,632.74 819,221.51 1,249,898.22 4,999,593.00 

Expenses
AIRFIELD PERSONNAL COSTS 194,111.28 224,748.08 555,841.80 674,244.24 2,696,977.00 
ADMINISTRATION 59,673.21 55,908.33 143,287.39 167,724.99 670,900.00 
FACILITY 24,412.43 51,393.00 87,262.77 154,179.00 616,716.00 
MAINTENANCE 10,244.54 84,583.33 32,829.55 253,749.99 1,015,000.00 
CONTINGENCY - - - - - 
Total Expenses 288,441.46 416,632.74 819,221.51 1,249,898.22 4,999,593.00 

Net Income(Loss)                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                    -   



TWEED-NEW HAVEN AIRPORT AUTHORITY   
AUTHORITY ADMIN ACCOUNT

Income Statement Sept 30, 2025

September Year to Date Budget
    Actual     Budget     Actual     Budget Board Approved       

(Annual)
Revenues
BASE RENT - LESSEE ** 49,817.79 49,583.00 149,453.37 148,749.00 595,000.00 
REVENUE SHARE - LESSEE 10,252.25 9,000.00 32,495.18 27,000.00 108,000.00 
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES & OTHER *** 3,443.10 25,271.00 23,022.10 32,542.00 267,000.00 

Total Revenues 63,513.14 83,854.00 204,970.65 208,291.00 970,000.00 

Expenses
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALARY 17,692.30 18,769.00 61,923.05 65,692.00 244,000.00 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TAXES AND BENEFITS 2,380.33 2,846.00 8,875.83 9,961.00 37,000.00 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 3,636.85 3,769.00 12,676.01 13,192.00 49,000.00 
ECONOMIC IMPACT STUDY - - - - - 
LEGAL, AUDIT, ACCOUNTING & OTHER SERVICES 15,663.10 20,958.00 54,646.15 52,874.00 247,000.00 
REIMBURSABLE LEGAL, AUDIT & OTHER COSTS 7,449.60 8,417.00 24,509.87 23,251.00 100,000.00 
CONSULTANT FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS - - - - 30,000.00 
BOND ISSUANCE COSTS - 17,000.00 26,030.60 51,000.00 170,000.00 
OTHER ADMIN COSTS 872.99 1,500.00 4,055.93 4,500.00 18,000.00                
CONTINGENCY - 6,250.00 - 18,750.00 75,000.00 

Total Expenses 47,695.17 79,509.00 192,717.44 239,220.00 970,000.00 

Net Income(Loss) 15,817.97                 4,345.00                   12,253.21                 (30,929.00)                -                              

** Base Rent calculation in the approved budget based on the latest CPI data available at the time. Budget projected a CPI increase of 2.3% over fiscal year 2025.. 
Actual CPI from commencement of the Lease and Development Agreement in August 2022 through May of 2025 was 8.69%. Revised estimate of Base Rent now $597,813.

*** Amount of reimbursements subject to review for eligibility



TWEED-NEW HAVEN AIRPORT AUTHORITY
Income Statement September 30, 2025

September Year to Date
Airfield Account     Auth. Admin Acc.   Airfield Account Auth. Admin Acc. Authority Total

Revenues
AIRPORT REVENUE 80,299.70 - 281,235.30 - 281,235.30 
FUEL REIMBURSEMENT 10,552.79 - 20,109.35 - 20,109.35 
BASE RENT LESSEE - 49,817.79 - 149,453.37 149,453.37 
REVENUE SHARE LESSEE - 10,252.25 - 32,495.18 32,495.18 
LESSEE AIRFIELD REIMBURSEMENT 197,588.97 - 517,876.86 - 517,876.86 
OTHER - 3,443.10 - 23,022.10 23,022.10 

Total Revenues 288,441.46 63,513.14 819,221.51 204,970.65 1,024,192.16 

Expenses
AIRPORT EXPENSES 82,663.51 872.99 228,379.70 4,055.93 232,435.63 
AIRPORT PAYROLL & BENEFITS 194,111.28 - 555,841.80 - 555,841.80 
AUTHORITY MANAGEMENT - 23,709.48 - 83,474.89 83,474.89 
ECONOMIC IMPACT STUDY - - - - - 
LEGAL, AUDIT & ACCOUNTING - 15,663.10 - 54,646.15 54,646.15 
REIMBURSABLE LEGAL, AUDIT & OTHER COSTS - 7,449.60 - 24,509.87 24,509.87 
CONSULTANT FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS - - - - - 
BOND ISSUANCE COSTS - - - 26,030.60 26,030.60 
AVPORTS - MGT FEES 11,666.67 - 35,000.01 - 35,000.01 

Total Expenses 288,441.46 47,695.17 819,221.51 192,717.44 1,011,938.95 

Net Income(Loss) -                               15,817.97                          -                                 12,253.21                        12,253.21                      



TWEED-NEW HAVEN AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Balance Sheet-Governmental Fund Type and Account Groups

September 30, 2025
DRAFT - UNAUDITED

Assets

Cash and equivalents  $       371,779 

Account receivable, net 933,664          

Due from (to) Capital Fund (12,527)          

Prepaid expenses and other assets 18,178            

Total assets 1,311,094$     

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Accounts payable (63,944)$        

Accrued Expenses and other current liabilities 991,814          

Fund Balance 383,225          

Total liabilities and fund balances 1,311,094$     



Destination Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Total (12-months)
MCO 8,046 5,670 6,026 7,231 9,802 8,849 8,856 8,859 9,376 8,789 9,729 10,579 10,416 104,182
FLL 3,962 3,129 3,537 4,466 6,282 5,103 4,471 4,695 4,882 3,844 4,786 5,443 5,362 56,000
PBI 2,661 2,212 2,763 4,343 6,923 5,661 5,899 6,633 6,470 2,826 2,575 2,525 2,778 51,608
TPA 2,638 2,209 2,919 3,484 3,943 3,596 3,900 4,631 3,954 2,994 2,989 2,683 3,173 40,475
RSW 2,690 2,583 2,847 3,830 6,405 4,317 5,345 5,957 5,939 2,507 2,154 2,286 2,014 46,184
SRQ 1,360 1,030 1,168 3,254 4,061 3,061 3,894 3,978 3,646 1,688 1,745 1,266 1,528 30,319
RDU 3,913 4,456 5,630 4,541 5,285 3,488 3,424 4,551 4,746 3,194 3,899 4,861 5,553 53,628
BNA 2,311 1,601 2,176 1,220 737 798 898 1,057 1,176 2,334 2,746 2,976 2,866 20,585
MYR 3,904 2,966 3,468 1,874 2,296 2,000 1,996 2,568 2,768 2,647 3,303 3,820 3,940 33,646
MDW 1,259 1,156 1,156 1,408 1,229 315 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,264
CHS 1,796 1,058 1,082 1,167 594 254 1,931 2,748 3,457 2,675 2,666 2,591 2,716 22,939
ILM 3,026 1,980 2,323 1,135 1,184 725 725 702 1,564 2,508 2,304 2,268 2,551 19,969
BWI 1,391 1,008 954 1,118 664 180 556 745 954 928 865 1,118 1,034 10,124
SAV 1,134 44 0 366 598 174 465 907 999 1,059 1,275 1,253 1,123 8,263
DAB 1,770 1,076 1,188 1,054 1,309 1,304 1,228 1,355 1,169 1,577 1,341 1,263 1,452 15,316
GSP 2,000 1,637 2,239 1,320 1,174 284 632 1,075 1,023 1,071 1,168 1,270 1,217 14,110
SJU 1,283 157 1,169 1,740 2,186 2,125 1,808 2,625 2,547 1,382 2,126 2,513 2,472 22,850
VPS 1,308 652 1,170 58 0 0 0 0 0 1,173 1,119 1,209 1,125 6,506
ATL 3,021 2,447 2,766 2,604 2,563 2,044 1,870 2,182 2,451 2,586 3,144 3,447 3,332 31,436
USA 2,971 1,490 1,664 2,175 2,656 1,953 1,524 2,029 2,266 2,315 2,231 2,176 2,615 25,094
TYS 1,241 908 1,353 620 675 230 0 0 0 950 1,012 1,015 1,231 7,994
HOU 1,108 859 1,055 649 790 831 584 1,173 992 1,097 1,304 1,284 1,175 11,793
TVC 438 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 361 746 693 1,800
STL 928 585 773 446 423 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,287
LAL 1,159 717 1,002 769 1,264 1,025 850 1,104 1,133 1,646 1,427 1,300 1,494 13,731
IAD 1,113 1,309 1,263 961 1,173 929 793 1,073 970 960 849 966 1,130 12,376
MSY 0 0 0 527 1,067 790 678 1,029 1,010 14 0 0 0 5,115
VRB 0 0 0 0 536 591 1,100 1,146 1,010 462 503 499 534 6,381
ORF 0 0 0 0 0 0 299 457 656 753 747 1,067 1,153 5,132
RIC 0 0 0 0 0 0 247 414 420 535 482 560 589 3,247
JAX 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,076 1,474 1,710 1,449 1,687 1,636 1,820 10,852
DFW 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 894 1,018 1,046 1,158 1,446 1,265 6,827
DTW 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 684 914 856 879 1,135 4,468
ORD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 758 1,359 1,210 1,512 4,839
PWM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 94 240 498 398 1,230
EYW (Starts 11/25) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0 115 0 0 99 0 0 0 173 315 702
Total EPAX 58,431 42,939 51,691 52,360 65,934 50,687 55,049 66,160 68,990 58,775 64,150 68,826 71,711 717,272

Avelo 58,431 42,939 51,691 52,360 61,600 46,261 46,153 58,601 58,758 51,338 56,128 60,056 63,147 649,032
Breeze 0 0 0 0 4,334 4,426 8,896 7,559 10,232 7,437 8,022 8,770 8,564 68,240

HVN Enplanement Report



Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Total (12-months)
FY 25 / 26 58,431 42,939 51,691 52,360 65,934 50,687 55,049 66,160 68,990 58,775 64,150 68,826 71,711 717,272
FY 24 / 25 43,837 36,183 39,781 41,510 42,045 32,241 36,413 48,724 47,370 44,048 51,498 57,520 58,431 535,764
% Change 33% 19% 30% 26% 57% 57% 51% 36% 46% 33% 25% 20% 23% 34%

Source: Bureau of Transportation Statistics, T-100 Domestic Segment (U.S. Carriers)

August 2024 - August 2025 UP 23%
Previous 12-Months UP 34%


	TNHAA Board of Directors
	Wednesday – November 19, 2025 @ 4:00 PM
	Virtual/In-Person


	Board Meeting Minutes October 2025.pdf
	Board Members in Attendance
	Board Members absent
	Others in attendance
	 Call to Order
	 Approval of Minutes
	 Chairman’s Report
	 Executive Director’s Report
	 Finance Committee Report
	August 2025 financials

	 Airport Manager’s Report
	Airfield Operations

	 Lessee’s Report – The New HVN LLC
	THE NEW HVN LLC
	Airside Development Report
	community engagement report

	 Reports and Action Items
	Resolution #628: Approval of a Transition Plan for Thomas Rafter
	Resolution #629: Resolution Prohibiting the Use of Airport Resources for Partisan or Political Purposes

	 Other Business
	 Public Comment
	Rev Jack Perkins Davidson – Hamden, CT [Virtual]
	Jacey Wyatt – Branford, CT [In-Person]
	Trina Yoxall – New Haven, CT [In-Person]
	Lorena Venegas – East Haven, CT [Virtual]
	Lisa Brandes – New Haven, CT [Virtual]
	Toni Lorenti – Meriden, CT [Virtual]
	Michael Giordano – Juno Beach, FL [Virtual]

	 Adjournment
	Action item Summary
	Minutes prepared and submitted by
	Air Service Update


	HVN FY 25-26 Monthly September 2025.pdf
	P&L Sept 25 Airfield
	P&L Sept 25 Admin
	P&L Sept 25
	Sept 25 BS




